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2019 Fall 

Request for Proposals for 

Partnering Funding 

 

Welcome to the Agnese Nelms Haury Program in Environment and Social Justice (Haury Program) 
request for proposals for partnering funding. We’ve listened to our community and are pleased to 
announce this new funding opportunity to promote the exploration and strengthening of partnerships. 
Collaboration and partnering are critical to the success of all projects. Large, diverse teams are 
increasingly crucial to investigating grand challenges and working toward solutions. The Haury Program 
invests in individuals and projects which require collaboration, partnering and teams to work on the 
large challenges of the 21st century at the intersection of social justice and environment.  

The Haury Program at the University of Arizona (UA) is pleased to request proposals for partnering 
funding. The Haury Program has $25,000 per year to provide investment in exploring new university-
community partnerships to work on projects that can be developed into proposals for seed, challenge or 
other paths to funding. This call for proposals has two main themes. Proposers should keep in mind one 
or both of these framing questions as they prepare their partnering proposals: 

1. What will a socially just and sustainable Southwest look like in 25 years? 
2. How does your work move the needle in building the stronger, more sustainable social fabric? 

The Haury Program will determine the total number and dollar amounts of individual awards through a 
competitive review and selection process. The Haury Program expects to fund up to five small grants for 
work on developing a cohesive partnership to address the aspects of collaborations, partnering, teams 
that make for successful projects. The funding opportunities occur through the University of Arizona 
Foundation (UAF) formally as charitable grants. 

Investing Up Front to Promote Success 

The purpose of this new Haury Program investment is to help build capacity in authentic partnering. We 
believe that a strong capacity in authentic partnering is critical to completing successful projects and 
making larger impacts in social justice and environment.  

2019 marked the fifth year of the Haury Program. The core investment focus of the first five years was in 
seed and challenge grants. As the first five years came to a close, having listened to community and 
university members and worked with teams, we concluded that our focus on teams and partnerships 
required a new category of funding, one that focuses on team building and collaborative skill building as 
a foundation for successful projects. 

These grants are intended to encourage UA and community groups to explore partnering with the goal 
of creating long-term collaborations to work on grand challenges. Successful collaboration and 
partnering do not magically occur. Using the grant term, awardees will work on the many different 
aspects of project partnering that lead to successful projects and partnerships. Each proto-team* will 
propose to work on specific elements that will improve their collaboration prior to the start of any 
specific project. 

*The Haury Program believes that the earliest exploration of potential partnerships should occur with a minimum 
of one UA and one community individual interested in working on developing strong, productive teams to work on 
projects. These grants can be used to find additional or different partners but both UA and community input is 
valuable to begin discussions. 
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This grant funding may be used to explore new partnership opportunities or to hone existing 
partnerships for new endeavors. These aspects include work to identify new partners, understand the 
difference and interplay of various goals (individual, organizational, institutional) and work styles and 
how they impact mutual goals of a project, how to work to resolve issues, and/or how to build strong 
and durable personal and organizational relationships that will lead to success projects and larger 
system-changing investments.  

 

What will these grants fund? 

These grants are to fund collaborative partnership development. Samples of specific tasks are: 

• Why do we want to form this team, what is the purpose? Addressing a need and a need for 
partnering; 

• Do we have the right partners, the best team? Engaging with the best partners for specific 
project ideas – creating a team which provides complementary skills; 

• How best can our styles of work complement one another? Participating in facilitated 
workshops to investigate team members’ styles of working, collaborating; 

• How can we be mindful of diverse views and yet work toward our goals as a cohesive unit? 
Establishing respect, relationships, and establishing a framework or contract for the partnership; 

• How do we build on other work and bring our innovative approach to challenges? Investigating 
other teams and considering the interplay of their work and what the team proposes to do; 

• What are the techniques, tools, resources, and skills needed to manage complicated, diverse 
projects? Creating a suite of skills in project management;  

• How can we deal with inevitable challenges that occur in project teams? Learning about 
methods to deal with diversity of experience, opinion, and external requirements. 

 

What is the Agnese Nelms Haury Program in Environment and Social Justice? In what areas does the 
Haury Program fund? 

The world faces twin challenges: delivering a decent standard of living for everyone, while living within 
environmental limits. The Haury Program was established at the University of Arizona to invest its 
funding in programs, projects and people working to create a safe, just and sustainable space for all 
humanity. Projects focus on the intersection of social justice and environment and are framed by the 
question: What will a socially just and sustainable Southwest look like in 25 years?  

Although we focus on work in the Southwest region, including Arizona, border lands and northern 
Mexico, we expect that this immediate focus will develop programs that work toward longer-term 
impact and systemic change in this regional community and models for programs that may be replicated 
or have value in other regions nationally and internationally.  

We fund primarily on a project-basis and have funded collaborative teams (UA-community co-leads) 
working in areas of climate change, energy, food, water, biodiversity, voice, and education. Because all 
our projects seek greater social justice, co-leads are organizations working with underrepresented 
communities, non-profits, Tribal governments, etc., and partnering UA faculty, staff and students. To 
learn more about what we fund, visit https://www.haury.arizona.edu. 
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Who is eligible to apply for these grants? 

Proposals for partnering funding must include both UA and community partners. The UA group and 
the community organization (see definition for payment purposes below) are co-leads. A faculty or staff 
member must be the lead within the UA group. 

Both parties can receive direct payments for their work in accordance with requirements as follows:  

UA primary partner: The Haury Program transfers funds from University of Arizona Foundation (UAF) to 
faculty researchers or staff UAF departmental gift accounts. The recipient can transfer funds from UAF 
gift account to UA departmental account.  

Community organization primary partner: The Haury Program generally pays community organizations 
by check. The organization must be one of the following to receive funds from UAF: nonprofit or 
nongovernmental organizations (IRS code: 501(c)(3)), public school district, Tribal nation, Tribal College, 
community college, not-for-profit university or college. Eligible organizational entities may represent 
non-profit organizations, schools (teachers, students), neighborhood groups, indigenous peoples, grass 
root coalitions, etc.  

 

What does the Haury Program NOT fund? 

Haury Program grant funding does not fund partnering explorations that will generate proposals for: 
• Capital improvements or building or capital campaigns; 
• Ongoing operational funding for existing programs or projects; 
• Direct donations or grants to individuals; 
• Grants for the main purpose to plan future work; 
• Political campaigns and legislative lobbying efforts; or 
• Projects that exclusively serve religious purposes. 

 

How do I apply for this award? 

To apply for this award, respond to the following questions and submit a budget. The answers to the 
questions must be no more than 2 pages total. The budget is an additional page. 

1. What need is this partnership intended to address? Describe your social justice/environmental 
work and how it relates to the Haury Program mission and goals. 

2. What is your goal in funding work on your partnership? Describe activities you will undertake 
and what specific capacities you will build. 

3. Who are members of the partnership? Provide links to biographies of team members and any 
prior or current work relevant to this proposal and the Haury Program.  

Create your budget using the budget template found on the Haury Program website: 
https://www.haury.arizona.edu/grant-opportunities-fall-2019. 

Proposals must be submitted on time and conform to all submittal requirements to be considered. 

 

What is the submittal format? 

All proposals must be delivered electronically through a web form with attachment in portable 
document format (PDF) as described below.  



 
 

Haury_Fall_2019_Partnering_Grant_RFP_90905.docx   4 

• The web form requires entry of: type of grant submitted, contact name, organization and email 
for the project leads, proposal title, list of additional partners, amount requested, proposal file 
name, and upload of narrative and budget as a pdf file. 

• The uploaded pdf file must include all of the information listed above under How do I apply for 
this award in order to be considered. 

Attached file and name  

Proposals must be uploaded through the webform as a single portable document format (PDF) and 
titled as follows:  

Partner 1 last name-Partner 2 last name_MonthYearofDelivery_PartneringProposal.xls 

Example: Lopez-Streep_1019_PartneringProposal.xls 

Multiple Files  

Proposals containing multiple files will not be accepted.  

Electronic delivery  

All proposals must be submitted using the fillable web form on the Haury Grant Opportunities 
webpage https://www.haury.arizona.edu/grant-opportunities-fall-2019. The form must be filled 
out completely and the pdf attachment uploaded. The maximum file size that can be uploaded 
is 50 MB. 

Once the proposal has been submitted, the submitter will receive a confirmation email. If the 
submitter does not get a confirmation email, please email haury@email.arizona.edu prior to the 
submittal deadline. 

For information on delivering proposals or for questions: 

• Information about the RFP:  
• Two pre-proposal meetings are offered:  

Pre-proposal Meeting I-  
General RFP Discussion – Discussion of 
grant opportunities and application 
requirements.  Please read through RFPs 
prior to attending. 

No RSVP required 

Sept. 19, 2019, 3:30 to 4:30 pm 
Eckstrom-Columbus Library 

4350 E. 22nd St., Tucson, AZ 85711 

Pre-proposal Meeting II-  
Tools for Project Success – Information on 
project components such as schedules, 
evaluation, program management and using 
the Project Roadmap template. 

No RSVP required 

October 11, 2019, 10:30 to noon 
Woods Memorial Library 

3455 N. First Ave., Tucson, AZ 85719 

 
• On-line FAQs can be found at: http://www.haury.arizona.edu/faq-page. 
• General information slideshow is available on the Haury Program website at Grant 

Opportunities https://www.haury.arizona.edu/grant-opportunities-fall-2019. 
• Consultation with Haury Program staff by appointment only as available for specific 

project questions but attendance at pre-proposal meetings is encouraged:  
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• Grant proposal office hours and dates are 9/30, 10/14 from 2-4 pm; 10/10, 
10/17 from 10 am-12pm. Please read through this RFP prior to scheduling a 
consultation.    

• Consultations will take place in at the Environment and Natural Resources 2 
(ENR2) Building, Room N558, 5th Floor, University of Arizona, 1064 E Lowell 
Street, Tucson, AZ 85721. 

• Please call Hiram Pena at (621-3262) or email haury@email.arizona.edu to make 
an appointment. 

• Information about the Haury Program: http://www.haury.arizona.edu. 
 

What are the key dates for the Fall 2019 partnering charitable grants? 

Activity  Date  

RFP Announcement  September 3, 2019 

Pre-proposal meeting I – 
General RFP discussion 

Sept. 19, 2019, 3:30 to 4:30 pm 
Eckstrom-Columbus Library 

4350 E. 22nd St., Tucson, AZ 85711 

Pre-proposal meeting II –  
Tools for Project Success 

October 11, 2019, 10:30 to noon 
Woods Memorial Library 

3455 N. First Ave., Tucson, AZ 85719 

Submittal Deadline  October 31, 2019, 5:00 pm (local time) 

Announcement of Awards Starting week of December 16, 2019 

Contracting with Awardees Starting December 16, 2019 to 
January 2, 2020 

Funds Available Starting January 2, 2020 

 

Honesty, Transparency, Effectiveness, Economy and Efficiency 

An obligation of this program is to manage the available financial resources with transparency, 
efficiency, effectiveness, economy and honesty, to meet the objectives for which they are intended. 
Beneficiaries must observe these principles as well, managing funds that are granted to them for the 
proper performance of the purposes. To do so, they must submit reports on the terms set out in the 
Agreement between the Haury Program and grantees.  

Any breach of these principles shall be cause for cancellation of the support. 

Equity and Non-Discrimination 

The recipients of Haury Program charitable grants are selected through competitive, efficient, equitable, 
transparent and public procedures based on merit and quality; charitable grants that are awarded are 
subject to processes of evaluation, selection, formalization and follow-up, in terms of the regulatory 
framework that corresponds to each program, therefore, the Haury Program in the allocation of 
resources to beneficiaries, is obligated not to discriminate the proponents for any reason or social 
status. 
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Interpretation and Unforeseen Issues 

The interpretation of this call and issues not covered herein will be resolved by the Haury Program, and 
its resolutions will be final. 

Miscellaneous 

The Haury Program does not provide office space or other facilities or equipment for grantees. All 
support, equipment and facilities must be provided by grantee and/or included in the budget.  

The Haury Program reserves the right to forgo or postpone funding. 

Frequently Asked Questions 

Please email your questions to haury@email.arizona.edu. We will post answers to all questions on the 
frequently asked questions (FAQs) link on the website at http://www.haury.arizona.edu/faq-page . 

 

 


